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NOTICE 

 
NOTICE is hereby given that the 39th Annual General Meeting of the Members of GENESIS 
EXPORTS LIMITED will be held at the Registered office of the Company at 10th Floor, Chitrakoot, 
230A, AJC Bose Road Kolkata – 700 020 on Saturday, 12th September, 2020 at 1:00 P.M to transact 
the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements 

of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 together with the Reports of the 
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sushil Jhunjhunwala (DIN: 00082461) who retire by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment as a Director. 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
3. Regularization of additional director, Mr. Ajit Jhunjhunwala by appointing him as a Non-

Executive Director of the Company: 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution, as 
an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152, 161(1) and any other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, and Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Mr. 
Ajit Jhunjhunwala (DIN: 00111872), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the 
Company by the Board of Directors with effect from 30th August, 2019 and who holds office 
upto the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company, and is eligible for appointment 
as a Director and pursuant to the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
and the Board of Directors and in respect of whom Company has received a notice in writing 
from a Member under Section 160(1) of the Act, proposing his candidature for the office of the 
Director, be and is hereby appointed as Non-Executive Director of the Company, whose office is 
liable to retire by rotation. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its 
Committee thereof) and/or Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorized 
to file requisite forms / documents to the Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.” 
 

4. Regularization of additional Independent Director, Prof. Santanu Ray by appointing him as 
Independent Director of the Company: 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution, as 
an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule 
 
 



,-

IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (lithe Act") and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions
of the SEBI listing Regulations (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof,
for the time being in force), Prof. Santanu Ray (DIN: 00642736), who was appointed as an Additional
Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from 30th
August, 2019 as per Section 161(1) of the Act, and who holds office of Independent Director upto the
conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and has submitted a declaration that he meets
the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for
appointment, and pursuant to the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in
writing from a Member under Section 160(1) of the Act signifying his intention to propose Prof.
Santanu Ray's candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 consecutive years w.e.f 30th
August, 2019 upto lqth August, 2024 and whose office shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURlHER mAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its Committee
thereof) and/ or Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorized to file requisite forms
/ documents to the Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be
considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution."

5. Appointment of Ms. Suparna Chakrabortti (DIN: 07090308) as an Independent Director of
the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution, as
an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED mAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (lithe Act") and the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions of the SEBI
Listing Regulations (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time
being in force) and pursuant to the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors, Ms. Suparna Chakrabortti (DIN: 07090308), who has
submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria for independence as provided under Section
149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and who is eligible for appointment, and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160(1) of the Act signifying
his intention to propose Ms. Chakrabortti's candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby
appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation,
for a period commencing from 12thSeptember, 2020 upto 11thMarch, 2025.

RESOLVED FURTHER mAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its Committee
thereof) and/ or Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorized to file requisite forms
/ documents to the Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be
considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution."

Place: Kolkata
Date: 27th July, 2020

Registered Office:
230A, A.J.e. Bose Road,
Chitrakoot, 10th Floor,
Kolkata - 700020



 
NOTES:  
 
(1) The Explanatory Statement as required under section 102 of the Companies Act 2013, in respect of 

Special Business is annexed to this Notice. 
 

(2) A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to 
attend and vote, instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be a Member of the Company.  
 

(3) Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the Company at the Registered Office of 
Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. A person can act as a 
proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the 
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed 
by the members holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting 
rights, then such proxy shall not act as proxy for any other person or member. 

 
(3) The Register of Member and Shares Transfer Books of the Company in respect of Equity Shares will 

remain closed from Friday, 4th September 2020 to Saturday, 12th September 2020 (both day 
inclusive). 
 

(4) In case you are holding the Company’s shares in dematerialized form, please contact your depository 
participant and give suitable instructions to update your bank details in your demat account and to 
notify any changes with respect to their addresses, email id, ECS mandate.  
 
In case you are holding Company’s shares in physical form, please inform Company’s RTA viz. M/s. 
Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd, 23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata-700001 by enclosing 
a photocopy of blank cancelled cheque of your bank account. 
 

(5) M/s. Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd, 23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata-700001 is the 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company. All communications in respect of share 
transfers and change in the address of the members may be communicated to them. 
 

(6) Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the meeting are 
requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board resolution authorising their 
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting. 
 

(7) Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by the members 
at the Registered office of the Company on all working days, between 11.00 A.M. to 1.00 P.M. from 
the date of dispatch of the Notice upto the date of the meeting. 
 

(8) Members/Proxies are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report to the AGM along with the 
attendance slip filled in for attending the Meeting. 
 

(9) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in 
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with 
whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can 
submit their PAN details to the Company / RTA. 
 

(10) To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not registered their e-mail IDs, are requested to 
register the same with the Company or its RTA. 
 

(11) SEBI had vide Notification Nos. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated 8th June 2018 and SEBI/LAD- 
NRO/GN/2018/49 dated 30th November 2018 read with BSE circular no. LIST/COMP/15/2018-19 
dated 5th July 2018 and NSE circular no. NSE/CML/2018/26 dated 9th July 2018 directed that transfer 
of securities would be carried out in dematerialized form only with effect from 1st April 2019, except in 
case of transmission or transposition of securities. In view of the above and to avail the benefits of 
dematerialization, Members are requested to consider dematerializing shares held by them in physical 
form.  
 

(12) A route map showing directions to reach the venue of the 39th AGM is given along with the Annual 
Report as per the requirement of the Secretarial Standards - 2 on General Meetings. 

 



 

(13) Additional information of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the ensuing AGM, as 
required under Clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India (“SS-2”), is annexed to the Notice. 
 

(14) The Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited for 
availing Electronics Voting facility which is mandatory as per Companies (Management & 
Administration) Rules, 2015.  

 
The facility of voting has been made available at the Annual General Meeting.  The members 
attending the meeting who have not already cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to 
exercise their right and that the members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the 
date of meeting may also attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.  
 

(15) The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Pravin Kumar Drolia (Membership No. FCS 2366) of 
Drolia & Company, Company Secretaries as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting during the AGM 
and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

 
(16) The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under: 

 

(i) The voting period begins on Wednesday 9th September, 2020 (9:00 a.m. IST) and ends on 
Friday, 11th September, 2020 (5:00 p.m. IST). During this period shareholders of the 
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on Friday, 
4th September, 2020 i.e. Cut-off date may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting 
module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote 
at the meeting venue. 

 

(iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 
 

(iv) Click on Shareholders. 
 

(v) Now Enter your User ID  
 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered 

with the Company. 
 

(vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
 

(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 
voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  
 

(viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 
 

 For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 
 

 Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 
Participant are requested to use the sequence number which is printed on 
Postal Ballot / Attendance Slip indicated in the PAN field. 

Dividend 
Bank 

Details 
OR Date of 
Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 
recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please 
enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as 
mentioned in instruction (v). 

 



 
 

(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 
 

(x) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 
screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password 

Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the 
new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders 
for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided 
that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to 
share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential. 
 

(xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on 

the resolutions contained in this Notice. 
 

(xii) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote. 
 

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same 
the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES 

implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the 
Resolution. 

 
(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution 

details. 

 
(xv) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else 
to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

 
(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 

vote. 

 
(xvii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 

Voting page. 
 

(xviii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password, then Enter the User ID and the 
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by 
the system. 
 

(xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for 
android based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play 
Store. Apple and Windows phone users can download the app from the App Store and 
the Windows Phone Store respectively. 

 
 

Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your 
mobile. 
 

(xx) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians 
 

 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are 
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates. 
 
 
 
 



• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailedtohelpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin
login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which
they wish to vote on.

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able to
cast their vote.

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system
for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

• Alternatively, Non-Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board
Resolution! Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company, if
voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the
scrutinizer to verify the same.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions ("F AQs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com. under
help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call 1800225533.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed
to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A
Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower
Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or
call 1800225533.

(17) The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes
cast during the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make, not later
than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total otes cast
in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall
countersign the same.

(18) The result declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website
www.genesis.exports@genesisexp.com and on the website of CDSL https://www.evotingindia.com
immediately. The Company shall simultaneously forward the results to Calcutta Stock Exchange
where the shares of the Company is listed.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 27th July, 2020



 
 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013) 

 
The following Explanatory Statement sets out all the material facts relating to the Item Nos. 3 to 5 of 
the accompanying Notice dated 27th July, 2020. 
 
Item No. 3 
 
As per recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Mr. Ajit Jhunjhunwala 
was appointed as an Additional Director on the Board with effect from August 30, 2019 under 
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 who holds office up to the date of the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting and is eligible for appointment as a director of the Company. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, appointment of 
Director requires approval of members. Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors have proposed that Mr. Ajit Jhunjhunwala be 
appointed as Non-Executive Director on the Board, whose office is liable to retire by rotation. 
 
The Company has received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160(1) of the Act 
proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the Company. Mr. Ajit Jhunjhunwala is not 
disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given his 
consent to act as a Director. 
 
In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Ajit Jhunjhunwala is a person of integrity and possesses relevant 
expertise and experience and fulfils the conditions for appointment as a Non-Executive director as 
specified in the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
A brief resume, as required pursuant to the Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and 
Secretarial Standards-2 issued by ICSI, is set out in the Annexure to the Explanatory Statement. 
 
Keeping in view the experience and expertise, the Resolution at Item No. 3 for his appointment as 
Non-Executive Director of the Company is recommended by the Board for approval by the 
Members of the Company. 
 
Except Mr. Ajit Jhunjhunwala and his relatives, to the extent of their shareholding, if any, none of 
the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, are in any way 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution as set out in Item No. 3 of the 
Notice. 
 
Item No. 4 
 
On the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors, 
appointed Prof. Santanu Ray (DIN: 00642736) as an Additional Director (Non-Executive and 
Independent) of the Company with effect from 30th August, 2019 pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 161 & 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV and the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 for a term of five consecutive years who 
holds office up to the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.  
 
His appointment is subject to the approval of the members. The Company has received a notice in 
writing from a member under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of 
Director of the Company. 
 
The Board, based on the performance evaluation of Prof. Santanu Ray and as per the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, considers that the contributions 
made by him during his tenure as an Additional Director (Non-Executive & Independent), the 
continued association of Prof. Santanu Ray would be beneficial to the Company and it is desirable 
to continue to avail his services as Independent Director.  
 
 



 
 
 
Accordingly, it is proposed to regularize the appointment of Prof. Santanu Ray as an Independent 
Director of the Company, who shall not be liable to retire by rotation and to hold office for a term of  
5 (Five) consecutive years on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 30th August, 2019 upto 29th August 
2024. 
 
The Company has also received declarations from Prof. Santanu Ray that he meets with the criteria 
of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) 
of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In the opinion of the Board, he fulfils the conditions for 
appointment as Independent Directors as specified in the Act and the Listing Regulations. Prof. 
Santanu Ray is independent of the management. 
 
The Company has also received an intimation that Prof. Santanu Ray is not disqualified under 
Section 164(2) of the Act and have given his consent to act as Director. 
 
Accordingly, based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board 
recommends Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice of the AGM for the 
approval by the members. 
 
Brief Details, as required pursuant to the Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial 
Standards-2 issued by ICSI, is set out in the in the Annexure to the Explanatory Statement. 
 
Except Prof. Santanu Ray, being an appointee, none of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company and their relatives is in anyway concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in 
these resolutions. The appointee director is not related to any Director of the Company.  
 
Item No. 5 
 
The Company received a notice from a Member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
signifying his intention to propose the candidature of Ms. Suparna Chakrabortti (DIN: 07090308) for 
the office of Independent Director of the Company. 
 
Ms. Suparna Chakrabortti, aged 53 years is a Commerce graduate and an associate member of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountant of India (ICAI). She has also done Masters in Business 
Administration from Rutgers University, NJ, USA and Masters in Education from Hunter College, 
New York, USA and is a practicing Chartered Accountant. She has more than 25 years of experience 
in corporate consultation & advisory. 
 
Ms. Chakrabortti has given a declaration to the Board that she meets the criteria of independence as 
provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations.  
 
The Company has also received an intimation that Ms. Suparna Chakrabortti is not disqualified 
under Section 164(2) of the Act and have given her consent to act as Director. 
 
In terms of proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 152, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that Ms. 
Suparna Chakrabortti fulfils the conditions for appointment as an Independent Director as specified 
in the Act and the Listing Regulations. After taking into consideration the recommendation of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board is of the opinion that Ms. Chakrabortti’s vast 
knowledge and varied experience will be of great value to the Company and has recommended the 
resolution at Item No. 5 of this Notice relating to the appointment of Ms. Chakrabortti as an 
“Independent Director”, not liable to retire by rotation for a period of commencing from 12th 
September, 2020 upto 11th March, 2025, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company. 
 
The other details of Ms. Chakrabortti in terms of Regulation 36(3) of SEBI Listing Regulations and 
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI is annexed to this Notice. Ms. 
Chakrabortti is not related to any Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company. 
 
 
 



Except Ms. Suparna Chakrabortti, being an appointee, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel or their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution
set out at Item No. 05 of the Notice.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 27th July, 2020

Registered Office:
230A, A.J.e. Bose Road,
Chitrakoot, 10th Floor,
Kolkata - 700020

ANNEXURE TO THE EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICS I), information about the directors seeking
appointment/re-appointment at the AGM is furnished below:

Name of Director Shri Aiit Ihunihunwala Prof. Santanu Ray Ms. Supama Chakrabortti
DIN 00111872 00642736 07090308
Date of Birth 29.12.1970 30.06.1949 28.06.1966
Qualifications Graduate in Commerce Fellow member of Graduate in Commerce,

The Institute of Chartered Accountant and
Chartered MBA & M.Ed from USA

Accountants of India
Experience & Over 30 years of Over 50 years of Over 25 years of experience
Expertise in specific experience in glass and experience in finance in corporate consultation
functional areas tableware industry & investment and advisory.

background
Date of first 28th June, 1997 30th August, 2019 18th May, 2019
appointment on the
Board of the
Company
No of shares held ID 97,083 Nil Nil
the Company as a
March 31, 2020
Terms and Non-Executive Director, Entitled for sitting fees Entitled for sitting fees
conditions of liable to retire by rotation
Appointment/ Re- Entitled for sitting fees
appointment
List of Directorship - La Opala RG Ltd Refer to Corporate - Rydak Syndicate Ltd.
held in other - SKJ Investments Pvt. Ltd. Governance Report - Dhelakhat Tea Company
Companies - Ishita Housing Pvt. Ltd. Limited

- SKJ Estate Pvt. Ltd.
- GDJ Housing Pvt. Ltd.

Inter-se Relationships Shri Ajit Jhunjhunwala is Not related to any Not related to any Director
between the son of Shri Sushil Director & KMP of & KMP of the Company
• Directors Jhunjhunwala and father the Company

of Ishita Jhunjhunwala. In
this way they are related
to each other.

• Key Managerial NA.
Personnel (KMP)

For other details such as number of meetings of the Board attended during the year, remuneration drawn
and Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees of other Public Limited Companies, please refer to
Corporate Governance Report which is a part of this Annual Report.



 

GENESIS EXPORTS LIMITED 
            CIN: L26919WB1981PLC033906 

Registered Office: Chitrakoot, 10th Floor, 230A, A.J.C. Bose Road, Kolkata-700020 
Ph: +91 7604088814/15/16/17; Fax: 91-33-2287 0284 

Email: genesis.exports@genesisexp.com; Website: www.genesisexp.com 
 

BOARD’S REPORT 
 
Dear Members,  
 
The Board of Directors are pleased to present the 39th Annual Report of the Company together with the 
Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020. 
 

1.      FINANCIAL RESULTS:  
 
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), prescribed under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules issued there under, w.e.f. 1st April, 2019. Accordingly, 
Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss along with Cash Flow Statement and Notes to the Financial 
Statement have been prepared in accordance with lnd AS notified under the Companies (lndian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) 
(amendment) Rules, 2016. 
 
The Company’s financial performance for the year ended 31st March, 2020 is summarized below: 
 

         (Rs. in Lakhs) 
Particulars Standalone Consolidated 

Year ended 
31.03.2020 

Year ended 
31.03.2019 

Year ended 
31.03.2020 

Year ended 
31.03.2019 

Income From Operation 1496.88 764.73 267.50 206.93 
Profit before Financial Expenses, Depreciation 
and Taxation 

1358.67 621.03 4031.8 3468.11 

Less: Financial expenses 0.01 9.00 0.01 9.00 
Operating profit before Depreciation &  
Taxation 

1358.66 612.03 4031.79 3459.11 

Less: Depreciation 15.71 17.26 15.71 17.26 

Profit before Taxation 1342.95 594.77 4016.08 3441.85 
Less: Provision for Taxation  
            Current Tax 
            Deferred Tax 
            MAT Credit Entitlement 

 
21.50 

(27.54) 
(128.59) 

 
56.10 
7.05 

- 

 
21.50 

(27.54) 
(128.59) 

 
56.10 
7.05 

- 
Profit after Taxation 1477.58 531.62 4150.71 3378.70 

 
2.      STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS (OVERALL PERFORMANCE REVIEW) 

 
The Company’s standalone Income from operations for FY 2019-20 was Rs. 1496.88 lakhs as compared 
to Rs. 764.73 lakhs in the previous year. The Net Profit for the year under review amounted to Rs. 
1477.58 lakhs in the current year as compared to Rs. 531.62 lakhs in the previous year.  
 

The Company’s consolidated Income from operations for Financial Year (‘FY’) 2019-20 was Rs. 267.50 
lakhs compared to Rs. 206.93 lakhs in the previous year. The Company earned a net profit of Rs. 
4150.71 lakhs, as against a net profit of Rs. 3378.70 lakhs in the previous year, on a consolidated basis. 
 

3.      IMPACT OF COVID-19 
 

The COVID-19 outbreak and its rapid spread beyond China has caused mounting concerns over the 
impact on global growth, leading to significant volatility in stock markets around the world. The spread 
of COVID-19 has severely impacted businesses around the globe. In many countries, including India, 
there has been severe disruption to regular business operations due to lockdowns, disruptions in 



 
 
transportation, supply chain, travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures. 
Our office was under nationwide lockdown since March 24, 2020 and operations begin in a phased 
manner taking into account directives from the Government. The market falls in March and April as the 
crisis developed were savage and indiscriminate, only to be followed by a dramatic rally. This extreme 
volatility is likely to continue for some time and has created dislocations in market valuations that are 
not consistent with the long-term fundamentals of the stocks in which we invest; our portfolio 
management team remain attuned to the investment opportunities that may be presented by these 
dislocations in pricing. The Company’s investment strategy remains focused on quality growth investment 
opportunities in smaller companies, a style that has demonstrably worked for the long-term. 
 

These are unprecedented times. The impact of COVID-19 is unpredictable and it is impossible at this stage 
to estimate its scale and duration. However, Management believes that things will improve in time. 

 
4.       BUYBACK OF EQUITY SHARES 

 
Pursuant to the approval of the Board on January 22, 2020 and approval of shareholders through special 
resolution dated June 4, 2020 passed through postal ballot/e-voting, your Company announced the 
buyback of 179874 fully paid up equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each from the shareholders of the 
Company on a proportionate basis through Tender Offer Method at a price of Rs. 610/- per equity share, 
for an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs. 10,97,23,140/- representing 18.33% of the fully paid up equity 
share capital and free reserves as per the Audited Standalone financials of the Company as on 
30.09.2019 in compliance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-Back of 
Securities) Regulations, 2018 and the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under. 
      

5.      TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
 
During the hear under review, the Company has transferred  296.00 lakhs to Reserve Fund.  
 

6.      DIVIDEND  
 
No dividend was proposed to be declared during the period under review. 
 

   7.      MATERIAL CHANGES BETWEEN THE DATE OF THE BOARD REPORT AND END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
 

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 
which have occurred between the end of the financial year 2019-20 to which the financial statements 
relate and the date of this report. 

 
8.      SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 

 
During the year under review there has been no such significant and material orders passed by the 
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and its operations in future. 
 

9.      CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS  
 
There has been no change in the nature of the business of the Company. 
 

10. DEPOSITS 
 
Your Company has not invited or accepted any deposits from public under Chapter V of Companies Act, 
2013 during the financial year and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposits 
from public was outstanding as on 31st March, 2020. 

 
11. SHARE CAPITAL 

 
The Paid up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March, 2020 stood at Rs. 71.95 Lacs. During the year under 
review, the Company has neither issued shares with differential voting rights /convertible warrant nor  
 



 
 
 
has granted any stock options or sweat equity. As on March 31, 2020, none of the Directors of the 
Company hold instruments convertible into equity shares of the Company.   

 
12. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 
In accordance with the provision of section 129(3) of the Companies Act 2013(Act) read with Companies 
(Accounts) Rule, 2014 and Regulation 33 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “Listing Regulations”) and 
applicable Accounting Standards, the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year 2019-20 together with the Auditors’ Report form part of this Annual Report. 
   

13. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
 
The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the operations of M/s La Opala RG Ltd, an associate 
company. The Company does not have any subsidiary or joint venture companies. A statement containing  
the salient features of financial statements of associate Company in the prescribed Form AOC – 1 as 
“Annexure A” forms part of Financial Statements in compliance with Section 129 (3) and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 

14. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
 
The Company has put in place adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting. The Board 
has adopted policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of 
fraud, error reporting mechanisms, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and timely 
preparation of reliable financial information. The internal financial controls with reference to the 
financial statements were adequate and operating effectively.  During the year, such controls were 
tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the design or operation were observed. 
 

15. AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
(i) STATUTORY AUDITOR: 

 
As per the provisions of the Act, the Company appointed M/s S. N. Roy & Company, Chartered 
Accountants, Kolkata (Firm Registration No. 313054E) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a 
period of five years commencing from the conclusion of 37th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the 
Company held on 29th September, 2018 to hold office till the conclusion of the 42nd AGM to be held in 
the year 2023. 
 
The notes on financial statements referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not 
call for any further comments.  The Auditors have issued an unmodified opinion on the Financial 
Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020. The Auditors’ Report on the financial 
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 is a part of the Annual 
Report. The Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. 
 
(ii) INTERNAL AUDITOR: 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Act read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has appointed M/s. 
Dhand & Co, Chartered Accountants as the Internal Auditors of the Company to conduct internal audit 
for the financial year 2019-20. 
 
(iii) SECRETARIAL AUDITOR: 

 
M/s. Drolia & Company, Company Secretaries (Certificate of Practice No. 1362) was appointed as the 
Secretarial Auditor to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2019 - 20.  
 



 
 
The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 obtained from M/s. Drolia & Company, Company Secretaries 
for the said financial year is annexed herewith and forms part of this report as “Annexure B”. 
 
The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 
 

16. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS 
 

During the year under review, there have not been any instances of fraud and accordingly, the 
Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and Secretarial Auditors have not reported any instances of frauds 
committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees either to the audit Committee or to the Board 
under section 143 (12) of the Act. 

 
17. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 
(i) APPOINTMENT OF MR. AJIT JHUNJHUNWALA ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 30th August, 2019, based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) approved the appointment of 
Mr. Ajit Jhunjhunwala as an Additional Non-Executive Director of the Company subject to the approval of 
shareholders in the General Meeting. 
 
(ii) APPOINTMENT OF PROF. SANTANU RAY AS AN ADDITIONAL NON-EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT 

DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 30th August, 2019, based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has appointed Prof. Santanu Ray (DIN: 
00642736), as an Additional (Non-Executive Independent) Director of the Company with immediate effect 
for a consecutive term of 5 years subject to the approval of the members in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) of the Company and a notice under section 160(1) of the Act has been received from the 
member signifying the intention to propose his appointment as Director. 
 
Approval of the shareholders is sought at the ensuing AGM for the appointment of Prof. Santanu Ray as the 
Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation. The Board and 
Nomination & remuneration Committee recommend his appointment. 
 
(iii) CESSATION FROM DIRECTORSHIP 

 
Mr. Gobind Ram Saraf and Mr. Rohit Maheswari, Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company 
informed the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30th August, 2019, about their desire to step down 
from directorship. 
 
Ms. Nidhi Jhunjhunwala, Non-Executive Director of the Company also submitted her resignation to Board of 
Directors at its meeting held on 30th August, 2019. 
   
The aforesaid Directors had been an integral part of the Board and its Committees where they were a 
member. They have contributed immensely to the functioning of the Board and the management has also 
benefitted from their advice and directions. The Board places on record gratitude for their advice and 
guidance. 
 
(iv) RETIREMENT BY ROTATION AND SUBSEQUENT RE-APPOINTMENT 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, read 
with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), Mr. Sushil Jhunjhunwala, Non-
Executive Director retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment. The Board recommends the re-appointment in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. A 
resolution seeking Members’ approval for his re-appointment forms part of the Notice. 

 



 
 

STATEMENT OF DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 

All Independent Directors have given declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down 
under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. The Independent 
Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company’s code of conduct. In the opinion 
of the Board, they fulfill the conditions of independence as specified in the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder and are independent of the management. 
 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) 
 

In terms of Section 203 of the Act, the following are the KMPs of the Company: 
 

Ms. Ishita Jhunjhunwala, Whole-time Director 
Mr. Nirmal Kumar Bengani, Chief Financial Officer 
Ms. Nidhi Rathi, Company Secretary 
 

18. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 
 
7 (Seven) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the financial year 2019 – 20. The details of 
the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company convened during the financial year 2019-20 are 
given in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Annual Report. 
 

19. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 

The Board has the following Committees: 
 

1. Audit Committee 
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee  
3. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
 
The details of the Committees along with their composition, number of meetings held and attendance at 
the meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. 
 

20. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 
 
The Company has adopted a Remuneration Policy for the selection and appointment of Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel, Senior Management of the Company and their remuneration including criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other matters pursuant to 
the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations. The said policy may be referred to, at the Company’s 
website www.genesisexp.com. 
 

21. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder, Regulation 
17(10) of the Listing Regulations, the evaluation of the annual performance of the 
Directors/Board/Committees was carried out for the Financial Year 2019-2020. A statement on annual 
evaluation by the Board of its performance and performance of its Committees as well as Individual 
Directors forms part of the Corporate Governance Report. 
 

22. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(C) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Directors’ 
Responsibility Statement, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that: 
 
(i)  in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;   
 
 



 
 
 
 
(ii) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2020 and the profits of the company for that period; 

 
(iii) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 
(iv) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;  

 
(v) proper internal financial controls laid down by the Directors were followed by the Company and 

that such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and 
 
(vi) proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and 

that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 
 

23. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 

In compliance with Regulation 34 of Listing Regulations, a separate report on Corporate Governance 
along with a Certificate from the Company’s Secretarial Auditor M/s Drolia & Company, Company 
Secretaries, Kolkata, confirming compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Part 
E of the Schedule V of the Listing Regulations is annexed to the Corporate Governance Report, forms an 
integral part of this Annual Report. 
 

24. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 148 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013  
 

The Company is not required to maintain the cost records and accounts as specified under section 148 
of Companies Act, 2013 as it not applicable on the Company. 
 

25. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE 
 
As on 31st March, 2020, the Committee comprised 3 (three) Members out of which 1 (one) was an 
Independent Director and 2 (two) were Non-Executive Director. During the year under review, 1 (one) 
CSR Committee meeting was held, details of which are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. 
The Report on CSR activities as required under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014 is enclosed as “Annexure – C” to this Report. 
 

26. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
 
The Extract of the Annual Return of the Company as on 31st March, 2020 in Form MGT-9 in accordance 
with Section 92(3) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, is set out in “Annexure D” to this report. The same will be available on the website of the 
Company at www.genesisexp.com. 
 

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS   
 
The particular of Contracts or Arrangement made with the related parties pursuant to section 188 are 
furnished in “Annexure E” (Form No AOC-2) and is attached to this report. The same have also been 
disclosed under Note No 29 of the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
 

28. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS 
 

During the Financial Year, the Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of Secretarial 
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of 
Directors and General Meetings. 
 



 
 
 
 

29. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO 
 
During the Financial Year there is no transaction in regards to Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo and 
since the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, the other particular relating to 
conservation of energy and technology absorption stipulated in the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
are not applicable to the Company. 

  
30. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE BY THE COMPANY 

 
During the year under review, the Company has made an investment under the provisions of Section 
186 of the Act, the details of which are set out in the Note 7 to the Standalone financial statements of 
the Company. The Company has not given any loans or corporate guarantee or provided any security 
during the year.  
 

31. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 
 
Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Act, a vigil mechanism has been established for Directors and 
employees to report to the management, instances of unethical behaviour, actual or suspected, fraud or 
violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy. The Company believes in the conduct of the 
affairs of its constituents by adopting the highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and 
ethical behavior. The functioning of the Vigil mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee from time 
to time. No complaint under this head has been received by the Company during the year. 
 

32. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
 
None of the employee has received remuneration exceeding the limit as stated in rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 
 

33. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS  
 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as stipulated under the Listing Regulations is presented in 
a separate Section forming part of this Annual Report. (“Annexure – F”) 
 

34. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
 
The Directors acknowledge the dedicated service of the employees of the Company during the year. 
They would also like to place on record their appreciation for the continued co-operation and support 
received by the Company during the year from Bankers, Financial Institutions, Government authorities, 
and other stakeholders. 

 
                                                             For and on behalf of the Board of Directors    

                                                                                       

                                                              
 
                                                                        (Ajit Jhunjhunwala)           (Ishita Jhunjhunwala) 

Place: Kolkata                                                  Director                          Whole Time Director      
Date:  27th July, 2020                                           DIN: 00111872                        DIN: 08325065                                                                                 
 

 
 



 
Annexure-A 

Form AOC-1 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014) 
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate 

companies/joint ventures 
 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 
 

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.) 
 
Sl. No. Particulars Details 

1.  Name of the subsidiary  
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOT APPLICABLE 
 
 
 

2.  Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the 
holding company’s reporting period 

3.  Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries 

4.  Share capital 
5.  Reserves & surplus 
6.  Total assets 
7.  Total Liabilities 
8.  Investments 
9.  Turnover 
10.  Profit before taxation 
11.  Provision for taxation 
12.  Profit after taxation 
13.  Proposed Dividend 
14.  % of shareholding 

 
Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures 

 
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies 
and Joint Ventures 
 
Name of associates/Joint Ventures La Opala RG Limited 

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31stMarch, 2020 
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the 

company on the year end 
 

No. of shares 5,13,99,000 
              Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 1745.18 Lakhs 

Extend of Holding% 46.31% 
3. Description of how there is significant influence By virtue of Shareholding & Voting Rights 
4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not 

consolidated 
Consolidated 

5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest 
audited Balance Sheet 

2390.24 Lakhs 

6. Profit/Loss for the year  
i. Considered in Consolidation 3902.51 Lakhs 
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 4524.42 Lakhs 

 
1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. N.A 
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. N.A 
 

                                                                         For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

                                                                               

Place: Kolkata                                                              (Ajit Jhunjhunwala)                 (Ishita Jhunjhunwala)   
Date: 27th July, 2020                                                              Director                              Whole Time Director      
                                                                                              DIN: 00111872                            DIN:08325065 
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                      DROLIA & COMPANY 
                         (Company Secretaries) 
                             9, Crooked Lane, Kolkata - 700069 

Mobile: 09831196869; Email: droliapravin@yahoo.co.in 
                            

FORM No MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

The Members, 
GENESIS EXPORTS LIMITED  
10TH FLOOR, 
230A, A J C BOSE ROAD 
Kolkata-700020 
 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Genesis Exports Limited (hereinafter called 
the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion 
thereon. 
Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, 
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we 
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by Genesis Exports Limited C
on 31st March, 2020 according to the provisions of: 
 

i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

ii)  
thereunder; 

iii) SEBI (Depositories and  Pa r t ic ipan t s )  Regu l a t ions  2018 ; 

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 
and External Commercial Borrowings- (Not applicable to the Company during the 
Audit Period) 

Cont. on page 2 
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v)      Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
- 

            (a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and      
                     Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
           (b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)    
                Regulations, 2015; 
           (c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share   
                 Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993; 
           (d) The SEBI Listing (Listing obligation and disclosure requirements) Regulations 2015 
           (e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)   
                 Regulations, 2018; 
 
[The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

-03-2020: - 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based employee benefits) Regulations 2014; 

(b) Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008; 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 as 

amended till date and 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; 

vi) Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 and various directions issued by Reserve Bank of 
India, so far as applicable to Non-Banking Financial Companies. 

vii)     The following Industry Specific laws: 

a.  Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 

b.  The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 

c.  The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 

d.  Employee State Insurance Act, 1948 

e.   The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 

f.   The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 

g.   The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 

    h. The Income Tax Act 1961 

     i. Indian Contract Act, 1872 

     j. Indian Stamp Act, 1999 

     k. Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 

     l. Profession tax Act  

      

 

Cont. on page 3 
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 i) Secretarial Standards (SS1 and SS2) issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India. 

 ii) The Listing Agreement and LODR Regulations 2015 of SEBI entered into by the 
Company with CSE. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.   

We further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. All the Directors are Non-
Executive Directors/Independent Directors except one Whole-time Director. The Independent 
Directors have been appointed/ designated with the approval of the shareholders obtained in 
the Annual General Meeting. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions 
of the Act and Listing regulations. 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda were sent in 
advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting  views, if any, are 
captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and process in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period that there were no specific events/actions 

regulations, guidelines, standards etc referred to above. 

FOR DROLIA & COMPANY, 
  (Company Secretaries) 
 
 
 
                                                                                                        Place: Kolkata 
           Proprietor                                                                                       
 FCS: 2366, CP: 1362                                                                Date: 27/07/2020 
UDIN: F002366B000510995 
 
 
Note: 
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and 
forms an integral part of this report. 
         
           Cont. on page 4 
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The Members, 
Genesis Exports Limited 
230A, A J C Bose Road 
Kolkata-700020 
 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 
company. Our responsibility is to be express on opinion on these secretarial records 
based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis of our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 
books of accounts of the Company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules, and regulations and happenings of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was 
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the company. 

7.       We   have not carried out the physical verification of any records due to prevailing 
condition of COVID 2019 in the Country. We have relied on the records as made 
available by the Company through digital mode as well as we have also relied on the 
management representation made by the Company.  

FOR DROLIA & COMPANY, 
  (Company Secretaries) 
 
 
                                                                                                      Place: Kolkata 
           Proprietor                                                                                       
 FCS: 2366, CP: 1362                                                                Date: 27/07/2020 
UDIN: F002366B000510995 
 



 

 
Annexure -C 

Corporate Social Responsibility 
 
1. Brief outline of the Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy, including 

overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-
link to the CSR policy and projects or programs: 

 
The Company’s CSR Policy includes activities which are in line with Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Company shall take up activities mentioned in its policy as and 
when fruitful opportunity exists.  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the CSR Policy as recommended by 
the Committee and the same has been uploaded on the Company’s website at 
www.genesisexp.com. 

  
2. The Composition of the CSR Committee: 

 
The CSR Committee of the Board consists of 3 Members. The names are as follows: - 

 
1) Mr. Sushil Jhunjhunwala, Chairman 
2) Mr. Ajit Jhunjhunwala 
3) Mr. Shyam Sunder Maheswari 
 

3. Average Net Profit of the Company for last three financial years: 
 

The Average Net Profit of the Company in the Financial year calculated as per Section 198 of 
the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules thereof (‘average 
net profit’) accrued during three immediately preceding financial years amounts to Rs.
5,64,45,827. 
 
Financial Year                       Net Profits for Computation of CSR (Amount in 
2016-17                                                                  7,01,98,953 
2017-18                                                                  5,80,70,227 
2018-19                                                                   8,34,66,035 
Total                                                                     21,17,35,215 
 
Three Year Average                                          7,05,78,405 

 
4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount as in item no. 3 above): 

 
The prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of the average net profit) amounting to Rs. 14,11,568 

 
5. Details of CSR expenditure/spent during the financial year: 

 
(a) Total amount spent during the financial year: - Rs. 10,00,000. 

 
(b) Amount remaining unspent during the year: - Rs. ,11,568. 

 
(c) Manner in which the amount contributed/spent during the financial year is detailed 

below: 
 

 



 
(Rs. in Lakh  

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) 

Sl. 

No. 

CSR project or 

activity identified 

Sector in 

which the 

project is 

covered 

Location Area or 

Specify the State and 

District where 

projects or programs 

were undertaken 

Amount 

spent on 

the projects 

or 

programs 

Cumulative 

expenditure 

(contributed) 

up to the 

reporting 

period by the 

Company 

Amount spent : 

Direct or through 

implementing 

agency 

1. Supporting people 

in  education  

Promoting 

Education 

Bhagalpur, Bihar 10.00 10.00 Sri Marwari 

Patshalla Samity 

(Vitti Committee) 

 
6. Reasons for not spending the stipulated CSR expenditure: - 

 
Your Company is committed to spend on CSR Activities but during the period under 
review, the company has not come across a suitable project for spending as per the 
Company’s CSR Policies. 
 

7. Responsibility Statement: 
 
The Responsibility Statement of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board of 
Directors of the Company is reproduced below: — 

 
‘The implementation and monitoring of Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, are in 
compliance with Corporate Social Responsibility objectives and Policy of the Company.’ 

 
 

                                                              For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
    

                                                                            
       
                                                                                       
                                                                      (Sushil Jhunjhunwala)               (Ishita Jhunjhunwala) 
Place: Kolkata                                           Chiarman of CSR Committee       Whole Time Director      
Date: 27th July, 2020                                          DIN: 00082461                            DIN: 08325065                                                                                                    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

1

1 46.30% 2(6)

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

- 360,066           360,066         50.04% 296,600            63,466            360,066          50.04% 0.00%

- -                   -                0.00% - -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

- -                   -                0.00% - -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

- 169,175           169,175         23.52% 169,175            -                 169,175          23.52% 0.00%

- -                   -                0.00% - -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

- -                   -                0.00% - -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

 -             529,241          529,241 73.56% 465,775                        63,466           529,241 73.56% 0.00%

- -                   -                0.00% - -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

- -                   -                0.00% - -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

- -                   -                0.00% - -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

- -                   -                0.00% - -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-                       -   -                0.00% - -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

 Nil             529,241          529,241 73.56% 465,775                        63,466           529,241 73.56% 0.00%

Sub Total (A) (2)

TOTAL (A)

Sub Total (A) (1)

(2) Foreign

a) NRI Individuals

b) Other Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.

d) Any other

a) Individual/ HUF

b) Central Govt

c) State Govt(s)

d) Bodies Corp.

e) Banks / FI

f) Any other

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
[As on 31-March-2019]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
[As on 31-March-2020]

% Change during 
the year    

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

LA OPALA RG LTD L26101WB1987PLC042512 Associate

IV.    SHARE HOLDING PATTERN 
(Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)

(i)  Category-wise Share Holding

Whether listed company YES ( Calcutta Stock Exchange)

Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt Ltd, 5th floor, 23 R N Mukherjee Road, Kolkata - 700 001
Telephone-033-22482248, 22435029 ; Fax:- 033-22484787
Email id:-  mdpldc@yahoo.com

III.     PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
SN Name and address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary/ Associate % of

shares
held

Applicable
Section

Non Banking Finance Company engaged in Investing in Shares & Securities & allied Activities 65993 96.21%

Annexure-D

Registration Date 23/07/1981

Name of the Company GENESIS EXPORTS LTD

Category/Sub-category of the Company Public Company, Limited By Shares, NBFC

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020 of Genesis Exports Limited

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I.  REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:
CIN L26919WB1981PLC33906

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)
S. No. Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the 

Product/service
%  to total turnover of the 

company

Address of the Registered office  & contact details 10TH FLOOR CHITRAKOOT, 230A AJC BOSE ROAD , KOLKATA 700020



Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
[As on 31-March-2019]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
[As on 31-March-2020]

% Change during 
the year    

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               182,158 182,158         25.31% 182108 50 182,158          25.31% 0.00%

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               -                   -                0.00% -                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

-               190,268           190,268         26.44% 182,108            8,160              190,268          26.44% 0.00%

-               190,268           190,268         26.44% 182,108            8,160              190,268          26.44% 0.00%

- 719,509           719,509         100.00% 647,883            71,626            719,509          100.00% 0.00%

(ii) Shareholding of Promoter

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered to 
total shares

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares of the 

company

% of 
Shares 

Pledged / 
encumbe

red to 
total 

shares

1            61,442 8.54% 0             61,442 8.54% 0 0.00%

2            97,083 13.49% 0             97,083 13.49% 0 0.00%

3            55,175 7.67% 0             55,175 7.67% 0 0.00%

4            82,900 11.52% 0             82,900 11.52% 0 0.00%

5            63,466 8.82% 0             63,466 8.82% 0 0.00%

6            75,330 10.47% 0             75,330 10.47% 0 0.00%

7            93,845 13.04% 0             93,845 13.04% 0 0.00%

         529,241 73.56% 0           529,241 73.56% 0 0.00%

AJIT JHUNJHUNWALA

GYANESHWARI DEVI JHUNJHUNWALA

SUSHIL JHUNJHUNWALA HUF

LA OPALA RG LTD

SKJ INVESTMENTS PVT LTD

Total

SN Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year
01.04.2019

NIDHI JHUNJHUNWALA

Shareholding at the end of the year
31.03.2020

% change in 
shareholding 

during the year

SUSHIL JHUNJHUNWALA

-                   -                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

Grand Total (A+B+C)

Total Public (B)

C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & 
ADRs

-               -                   -                0.00%

Overseas Corporate Bodies

Foreign Nationals

Clearing Members

Trusts

Foreign Bodies - D R

Sub-total (B)(2):-

-                 -                  0.00% 0.00%

c) Others (specify)

Non Resident Indians

ii) Individual shareholders holding nominal 
share capital in excess of Rs 1 lakh

-               -                   -                0.00%              -

1.13%              - 8,110 8,110              1.13% 0.00%

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders holding nominal 
share capital upto Rs. 1 lakh

-               8,110 8,110             

 h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital Funds

f) Insurance Companies

g) FIIs

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds



(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

73.56% 73.56%

0.00% 0.00%

73.56% 73.56%

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders

       (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

1

01/04/2019 14.45% -

- 0.00% 0.00%

31/03/2020 - 14.45%

2

01/04/2019 1.85% 0.00%

- 0.00% 0.00%

31/03/2020 - 1.85%

3

01/04/2019 1.74% -

- 0.00% 0.00%

31/03/2020 - 1.74%

4

01/04/2019 1.74% 0.00%

- 0.00% 0.00%

31/03/2020 - 1.74%

5

01/04/2019 1.13% 0.00%

- 0.00% 0.00%

31/03/2020 - 1.13%

6

01/04/2019 0.93% 0.00%

- 0.00% 0.00%

31/03/2020 - 0.93%

7

01/04/2019 0.87% 0.00%

- 0.00% 0.00%

31/03/2020 0.00% 0.87%

8

01/04/2019 0.87% 0.00%

- 0.00% 0.00%

31/03/2020 0.00% 0.87%

9

01/04/2019 0.69% 0.00%

- 0.00% 0.00%

31/03/2020 0.00% 0.69%

10

01/04/2019 0.46% 0.00%

- 0.00% 0.00%

31/03/2020 0.00% 0.46%

Paritoshik Tie Up Pvt Ltd

At the beginning of the year                                           3,333  - 

Changes during the year                                                 -                                         -   

At the end of the year                                                 -                                   3,333 

Changes during the year  -                                       -   

At the end of the year                                                 -                                   6,250 

At the end of the year                                                 -                                   6,666 

Surajgarh Biotech Consultancy Pvt Ltd

At the beginning of the year                                           6,250  - 

                                                -                                   6,250 

Pichu Sleepwear Pvt Ltd

At the beginning of the year                                         12,500  - 

Parijat Tracom Pvt Ltd

At the beginning of the year                                           6,666  - 

Changes during the year                                                 -                                         -   

Changes during the year                                                 -                                         -   

At the end of the year                                                 -                                 12,500 

At the end of the year  -                               12,500 

Changes during the year                                                 -                                         -   

At the end of the year                                                 -                                   5,000 

At the end of the year                                                 -                                   8,166 

Ramgarh Storage Company Pvt Ltd

At the beginning of the year                                           5,000  - 

Surya Commercial Ltd

At the beginning of the year                                           6,250  - 

Changes during the year                                                 -                                         -   

At the end of the year

Binawadini Printing & Allied Works Pvt Ltd

At the beginning of the year                                         13,333  - 

Navalgarh Printing Press Pvt Ltd

At the beginning of the year                                           8,166  - 

Changes during the year                                                 -                                         -   

Changes during the year                                                 -                                         -   

At the end of the year                                                 -                                 13,333 

Risorgimento Industrial Co Ltd

At the beginning of the year                                         12,500  - 

Changes during the year  -                                       -   

Changes during the year                                                 -                                         -   

At the end of the year                                                 -                               103,944 

% of total 
shares

No. of shares % of total shares

Shruti Marketing Pvt Ltd

At the beginning of the year                                       103,944  - 

At the end of the year                                       529,241                             529,241 

SN For each of the Top 10 shareholders Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares

At the beginning of the year                                       529,241                             529,241 

Changes during the year  No change  No change 

SN Particulars Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total 
shares

No. of shares % of total shares



(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

1

01/04/2019 8.54% -

- 0.00% 0.00%

31/03/2020 0.00% 8.54%

2

01/04/2019 13.49% -

- 0.00% 0.00%

31/03/2020 0.00% 13.49%

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
SN. Total Amount

(Rs/Lac)

-                        

2 -                        

3 -                        

-                        

-                        

-                        

5 -                        

33,21,900

Others, please specify

Total (A)

-

33,21,900

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

33,21,900

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 -                        

-

-

4

Commission

-  as % of profit

-  others, specify

-

-

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(Appointed as Whole-time Director w.e.f 14.02.2019)

Name

Designation

Ishita Jhunjhunwala

Whole-time Director

33,21,900

-

-

Total (i+ii+iii) -                                            -                                              -                                            -                                          

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

ii) Interest due but not paid -                                              -                                          

iii) Interest accrued but not due -                                              -                                          

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount -                                              -                                          

* Reduction -                                            -                                              -                                          

Net Change -                                            -                                              -                                            -                                          

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

* Addition -                                            -                                              -                                          

iii)  Interest accrued but not due -                                              -                                          

Total (i+ii+iii) -                                            -                                              -                                            -                                          

i)   Principal Amount -                                            -                                              -                                          

ii)  Interest due but not paid -                                            -                                              -                                          

Particulars Secured Loans excluding 
deposits

Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(Amt. Rs./Lacs)

Changes during the year                                                 -    - 

At the end of the year                                                 -                                 97,083 

Ajit Jhunjhunwala

At the beginning of the year                                         97,083  - 

SN Shareholding of each Directors and each Key 
Managerial Personnel

Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total shares

Changes during the year                                                 -    - 

At the end of the year                                                 -                                 61,442 

Sushil Jhunjhunwala

At the beginning of the year                                         61,442  - 

% of total 
shares

No. of shares



B. Remuneration to other Directors
SN.

 Shyam Sunder 
Maheswari 

70,000                  

-

-

70,000                  
 Suparna 
Chakrabortti 

1,45,000

-

-

145,000                

215,000                

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD
SN. Total Amount

(Rs/Lac)

Gross salary

-                        

2 Stock Option -                        

3 Sweat Equity -                        

Commission

-  as % of profit -                        

-  others, specify -                        

5 Others, please specify -                        

Total 3,100,551.00        

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

(Ishita Jhunjhunwala)  

3,100,551             

Place : Kolkata

Date   : 27th July  2020

Name of Directors

Type Section of 
the 

Companies 
Act

Brief Description Details of Penalty / 
Punishment/ Compounding 

fees imposed

Authority [RD / NCLT/ 
COURT]

Appeal made, if any (give 
Details)

- - -

- -                                             -                                    

4 - - -

-                        

- -

- - -

- - -

-

1

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-
tax Act, 1961.

-
22,69,518 8,31,033

Name Ishita Jhunjhunwala Nirmal Kumar Bengani Nidhi Rathi

Designation WTD CFO CS

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 - - -

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Key Managerial Personnel

Total (B)=(1+2) 150,000                                   75,000                                        110,000                            

* Ceased to be Directors w.e.f. 30.08.2019.

Total Remuneration 5,50,000

Total (2) 95,000                                     50,000                                        15,000                              

95,000                                     50,000                                        15,000                              

Commission - - -

2 Other Non-Executive Directors Sushil Jhunjhunwala Ajit jhunjhunwala Nidhi Jhunjhunwala*

Fee for attending board / committee meetings

Others, please specify - - -

Others, please specify - - -

1 Independent Directors Gobind Ram Saraf * Rohit Maheswari * Prof. Santanu Ray

Fee for attending board / committee meetings 55,000                                     25,000                                        95,000                              

Commission

Total (1) 55,000                                     25,000                                        95,000                              

Particulars of Remuneration

- - -

 -- NIL --

A. COMPANY

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Whole Time Director
DIN : 08325065

 -- NIL --

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

 -- NIL --

B. DIRECTORS

(Ajit Jhunjhunwala)

     Director

DIN: 00111872



 
Annexure - E 

 
FORM NO AOC-2 

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014] 
 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 

parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 

length transaction under third proviso is given below: 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis 
 

       There are no related party contracts, arrangements or transactions of the nature mentioned in sub-
section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are not at arm’s length. 

 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis 
 

(a) Name(s) of the Related Party 

and nature of relationship 
La Opala RG Ltd. 

(Associate Company ) 
Mrs. G.D 

Jhunjhunwala 

(Relative of 
Director) 

Ms. Ishita 
Jhunjhunwala 

(KMP) 

(b) Nature of contracts/arrange-

ements/transactions 
Leasing of Real Estate 

and Dividend 
Appointment as 

General Manager 

Appointment as 

Whole-time 

Director 

(c) Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/tra

nsactions 

Every year for Leasing of 

Real Estate - 5 years 

(d) Salient terms of the 

contracts or arrangements or 

transactions including the 

value, if any 

The Company has given 

on lease the office and 

car parking space at 

Kolkata and New Delhi. 

The rent received by 

Company is 39,67,500 
and dividend received 

12,29,37,600. 

Remuneration paid  
8,17,742 

Remuneration paid  
33,21,900 

(e) Date(s) of approval by the 

Board, if any: 

 

18-05-2019 

 

18-05-2019 14-02-2019 

(f) Amount paid as advances, if 

any: 
Nil Not Applicable Not Applicable 

 

                                                                                         For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

                                                                                  
Place: Kolkata                                                          (Ajit Jhunjhunwala)                     (Ishita Jhunjhunwala)   
Dated:  27th July, 2020                                                        Director                                Whole Time Director      

                                                                             DIN: 00111872                               DIN: 08325065 



                                                                                   
             

ANNEXURE -F 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 
Genesis Exports Ltd. (‘GEL’ or ‘the Company’) is a non-deposit-taking Non-Banking Financial 
Company (NBFC-ND) registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). It is engaged in the business of 
investment activities. 
 

1. MACRO ECONOMIC OVERVIEW 
 

FY2020 began witnessed a slowdown in growth owing to a significant moderation in economic activity. 
The nation has been facing several structural stresses such as, sluggish private investment, significant 
decline in savings rate and increase in unemployment rate. The COVID-19 induced lockdown/social 
distancing measures started in March 2020 and put 75% of the overall economic activity into standstill. 
It consequently hastened the downward trajectory of GDP growth in Q4FY20 to 3.1%. For FY20, 
India’s GDP growth declined to 4.2% as compared to 6.1% in FY19. Weaknesses in overall economic 
activity also put pressure on business growth of lenders including NBFCs. The spread of COVID-19 in 
March 2020, further heightened uncertainties for Q4FY20. 
 

2. COMPANY’S  FINANCIAL  PERFORMANCE  
 
The Company’s consolidated Income from operations for Financial Year (‘FY’) 2019-20 was Rs. 267.50 
lakhs compared to Rs. 206.93 lakhs in the previous year. The Company earned a net profit of Rs. 
4150.71 lakhs, as against a net profit of Rs. 3378.70 lakhs in the previous year, on a consolidated basis. 
 
The Company’s standalone Income from operations for FY 2019-20 was Rs. 1496.88 lakhs as compared 
to Rs. 764.73 lakhs in the previous year. The Net Profit for the year under review amounted to Rs. 
1477.58 lakhs in the current year as compared to Rs. 531.62 lakhs in the previous year.  
 

3. OUTLOOK FOR FY 2021 
 
As the pandemic has spread across the globe, the adverse impact of COVID-19 has overshadowed global 
macroeconomic outlook. Several multilateral agencies have projected recession for the global economy 
in the calendar year 2020 with the IMF (International Monetary Fund) warning of the worst global 
recession in almost a century. 
 
Despite the challenges in the external environment, your Company sailed through the storm and 
delivered strong performance. This can be credited to your Company’s underlying core strengths of 
focused businesses. The Company is hopeful about its future growth inspite of challenges and threats. 
 

4. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 
 
Even before the COVID-19 related slowdown, FY20 was a difficult year for the economy in general and 
more specifically the NBFC sector. NBFCs were impacted with a demand slowdown in core sectors and 
liquidity issues in the market.  
 
The uncertainties exists in the Investment market due to various factors such as global environment, 
extended lockdown, domestic conditions and monetary policies of different countries all over the world. 
At the same time the uncertainties prevailing in the market give opportunities to the Company to 
improve its return. 
 

5. RISKS AND CONCERNS 
 

Company, in pursuit of its business objectives, is exposed to certain risks such as credit risk, market risk 
and  liquidity risk. The main cause of concern for the Company is the fluctuating global and political 
environment prevailing in the market resulting therein incondusive atmosphere for investment.  
 

6. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
The Company has adequate systems of internal Controls commensurate with its size and operations to 
ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business. 



                                                                                   
 
 

7. HUMAN RELATIONS  
 
Human relations during the year under review remains cordial and peaceful. 
 

8. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT  
 
Statements in this report on Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s 
strengths, strategies, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be forward-looking, 
considering the applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may vary from those expressed or 
implied, depending upon economic conditions, Government Policies and other incidental factors. 
Management does not guarantee the accuracy of the assumptions. 
  
                   

     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
  
 

 

 

 
 

                                   

Place: Kolkata (Ajit Jhunjhunwala)    (Ishita Jhunjhunwala) 
Date: 27th July, 2020             Director     Whole-time Director 
    DIN-00111872          DIN-08325065 
 



ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 
The Board of Directors presents a Compliance Report on the Corporate Governance for the year ended 31st March, 
2020, in terms of Regulation 34(3) read with schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and the Company endeavors to adopt best practices of 
Corporate Governance. 
 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has introduced a Code of Corporate Governance for listed 
companies, which is implemented through the Listing Regulations and the Listing Agreement/s executed with the 
Stock Exchange/s with which a Company’s shares are listed. Corporate Governance is a set of systems and 
practices to ensure that the affairs of a Company are being managed in a manner which ensures accountability, 
transparency, and fairness in all its transactions in the widest sense and meet the aspirations and expectations of 
the stakeholders and the society as a whole.  
 

The Company is, therefore, committed to maintained the highest standards of Corporate Governance in its conduct 
towards shareholders, employees, regulators, customers, suppliers, lenders and with every person who comes in 
contact with the Company. The Company strongly believes that good Corporate Governance is a journey which 
leads to corporate growth, profitability and stability of any business and long term gain in shareholder’s value. 
 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
The Board of Directors of the company comprises of 6 (six) Directors as on March 31, 2020 out of which two are 
Independent directors, three are Non-Executive Directors including one Woman Director and one is Whole-Time 
Director. The business of the company is managed by Whole-time Director and Non-Executive Directors under the 
guidance, supervision and control of the Board of Directors. All Directors possess relevant qualifications and 
experience in general corporate management, marketing, finance and other allied fields which enable them to 
effectively contribute to the Company in their capacity as Directors. 
 

The Company requires skills/expertise/competencies in the areas of strategy, finance, accounting, legal and 
regulatory matters to efficiently carry on its core investment business. All the above required 
skills/expertise/competencies are available with the Board. 
 

Meetings of the Board are generally held at the Registered Office of the Company. During the Financial Year 
ended Mach 31, 2020, 7 (seven) Board Meetings were held and the gap between two meetings did not exceed 120 
days. The dates on which the Board Meetings were held were: May 18, 2019; August 30, 2019; October 19, 2019; 
November 09, 2019; December 14, 2019; January 22, 2020 and February 14, 2020.     
                                                                                                                                                                                                                
The composition and categories of Directors as on 31st March, 2020, their attendance at the Board Meetings held 
during the year and at the last Annual General Meeting, as also the number of Directorships and Committee 
positions held by them in public limited Companies are given below: 
 

Name of Director Category Attendance at 
Meetings 

No. of 
Directorship 
held in other 
public limited 
companies as 
on March 31, 

2020 

Committee Positions 
as on March 31, 

2020* 

Directorship in 
other listed entities 

(Category of 
directorship)     Board 

Meetings 
 

Last 
AGM  

   Member 
in other 

Companies 

Chairman 
in other 

Companies 

Mr. Sushil Jhunjhunwala Non- Executive Director 6 Yes 2 2 1 La Opala RG Ltd 
(Executive Vice 
Chairman) 

BSL Limited 
(Non-Executive & 
Independent Director) 
 

Mr. Ajit Jhunjhunwala Non- Executive Director 6 Yes 1 1 Nil La Opala RG Ltd 
(Managing Director) 



 
 
 

Name of Director Category Attendance at 
Meetings 

 
 

No. of 
Directorship 
held in other 
public limited 
companies as 
on March 31, 
2019 

Committee Positions as 
on March 31, 2020* 

Directorship in 
other listed entities 

(Category of 
directorship) 

Board 
Meetings 

 

Last 
AGM  

Member 
in other 
Companies 

Chairman 
in other 
Companies 

Ms. Ishita Jhunjhunwala Whole-time Director 7 Yes 0 0 Nil Nil 

Ms. Suparna ChakraborttiNon- Executive Director 6 Yes 2 1 1 Rydak Syndicate Ltd 
(Non-Executive 
Independent Director) 
Dhelakhat Tea 
Company Limited 
(Non-Executive 
Independent Director) 
 

Prof. Santanu Ray** Non-Executive & 
Independent Director 

5 No 8 3 4 Century Plyboards 
(India) Ltd 
(Non-Executive & 
Independent) 
La Opala RG Ltd 
(Non-Executive 
Independent Director) 

Star Cement Limited 
(Non-Executive & 
Independent Director) 
Shyam Century 
Ferrous Ltd. 
(Non-Executive & 
Independent Director) 
Bharat Road Network 
Ltd  (Non-Executive & 
Independent Director) 

SKP Securities Ltd. 
(Non-Executive & 
Independent Director) 
 

Mr. Shyam Sunder 
Maheshwari** 

Non-Executive & 
Independent Director 

5 No 0 0 Nil Nil 

 
Notes: 
 

* For this purpose only two Committees Viz. Audit Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of 
all public limited companies are considered. 
 
** Appointed as Directors w.e.f. 30.08.2019 
 
Mr. Sushil Jhunjhunwala is the father of Mr. Ajit Jhunjhunwala and grandfather of Ms. Ishita Jhunjhunwala. In this 
way, they are related to each other. There are no inter se relationships between the other Board members except 
disclosed above. 
 
None of the Directors hold the office of director in more than the permissible number of companies under the Companies 
Act, 2013 or Regulation 25 and 26 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India, (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
 
 



 
 

 Independent Directors and Non-Executive Directors 
 
Your Company appointed Independent Directors who are renowned personalities having expertise/experience in 
their respective field/profession. All Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed as per the 
provisions of the Act, Listing Regulations and the Governance Guidelines for Board Effectiveness adopted by the 
Company. The Company had issued formal letter of appointment to all Independent Directors. In the opinion of 
the Board, the Independent Directors are independent of the management. 
 
The Non-Eexecutive Directors namely Mr. Sushil Jhunjhunwala holds 61,442 equity shares and Mr. Ajit 
Jhunjhunwala hold 97,083 equity shares in the Company. 
 
All Independent Directors maintain their limits of Directorships as required under Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulation,2015.  
 

 Separate Meeting of Independent Directors 
 
As required under Schedule IV to the Companies Act (Code for Independent Directors) and Regulation 25(3) of 
the Listing Regulations, a separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 14th February, 2020, without the 
attendance of Non-Independent Directors and members of the management to review the performance of Non-
Independent Directors, the Board as a whole and it’s Chairperson and assess the quality, quantity and timeliness 
of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board. All Independent Directors of the 
Company attended the Meeting of Independent Directors. 
 

 Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors 
  
The Company has Familiarization Program for Independent Directors to familiarize them with regard to their roles, 
rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model, 
code of conduct and policies of the Company etc through various means. The Independent Directors are provided 
with necessary documents, reports and other relevant information to enable them to familiarize with the 
Company’s procedures and practices. Periodic presentations are made at the Board meetings on business and 
performance updates of the Company, business strategy and risks involved. 
 

 Board Evaluation 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the evaluation of the annual performance of the Directors/Board/Committees 
was carried out for the financial year 2019-2020. It covers various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as 
adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of 
specific duties, obligations and governance. 
 
Structured assessment sheets were finalized to evaluate the performance of the Board, Committees of the Board 
and individual performance of each Director including the Chairman. The evaluation process was facilitated by 
the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.  
 
These assessment sheets for evaluation of performance of the Directors were prepared based on various aspects 
which, amongst other parameters, included the level of participation of the Directors, understanding of the roles 
and responsibilities of Directors, understanding of the business and competitive environment in which the 
Company operates, understanding of the strategic issues and challenges for the Company, etc. 
 
The performance of the Independent Directors was also evaluated taking into account the time devoted and 
attention given to professional obligations for independent decision making and acting in the best interest of the 
Company. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the entire evaluation process. 
 
 
 
 
 



3. AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

The Audit Committee consists of Three Non-Executive directors out of which Two are Independent Directors. 
During the period under review the Audit Committee met on five (5) occasions viz May 18, 2019; August 30, 
2019; November 9, 2019; December 14, 2019 and February 14, 2020.  The constitution of Audit Committee also 
meets the requirements of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 

The details of present members, their category and number of meetings attended by them during the F.Y. 2019-20 
are given below: 
 

Name of the Committee Member & 
Designation in Committee 

Category in the Board No. of meetings 
held 

No. of meetings 
attended 

Prof. Santanu Ray, Chairman* Independent Director 5 2 
Mr. Shyam Sunder Maheshwari, Member** Independent Director 5 3 
Mr. Sushil Jhunjhunwala, Member  Non-Executive Director 5 4 
Ms. Suparna Chakrabortti (resigned)* Non-Executive Director 5 3 

  
* Prof. Santanu Ray was appointed in the Audit Committee by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on    

09.11.2019 & Ms. Suparna Chakrabortti resigned from the Committee in the Board Meeting held on 14.02.2020.  
** Mr. Shyam Sunder Maheshwari was appointed in the Audit Committee by the Board of Directors at its meeting 

held on 30.08.2019. 
The role of Audit Committee and terms of reference specified by the Board to the Audit Committee are wide 
enough to cover the mandatory items, as required, under Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  
 

 Review of the Company’s financial reporting process, the financial statements and financial / risk management 
policies. 

 Review Quarterly, Half-yearly and Annual Financial Accounts of the Company and discuss with Auditors. 
 To meet and review with External and Internal Auditors the Internal Control Systems 
 Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on 
 Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings if any 
 Qualification in the draft audit report if any 
 Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 
 To review matters as required under the terms of Listing Agreement. 
 To oversee & review the function of Vigil Mechanism implemented by Company as a Whistle Blower Policy 

and renew the findings of investigations and action taken in respect thereof. 
 Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company  
 Review Independence of Auditors. 
 Evaluate internal financial control and risk management systems 
 Disclosure of related party transactions  
 To investigate matters referred to it by the Board. 
 

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is constituted in alignment with the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations and terms of reference, 
including role & powers of the Committee, has been modified accordingly. The committee comprises of 3 Non-
Executive Directors, out of which two are Independent Directors. During the F.Y. 2019-20, three (3) meetings of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held on 18th May, 2019; 30th August, 2019 and 14th February, 2020. 
 

The details of present members, their category and number of meetings attended by them during the F.Y. 2019-20 
are given below: 
 

Name of the Committee Member & 
Designation in Committee 

Category in the Board No. of meetings 
held 

No. of meetings 
attended 

Prof. Santanu Ray, Chairman* Independent Director 3 0 
Ms. Suparna Chakrabortti (resigned)* Non-Executive Director 3 2 
Mr. Shyam Sunder Maheshwari, Member** Independent Director 3 1 
Mr. Sushil Jhunjhunwala, Member  Non-Executive Director 3 3 



 
*Prof. Santanu Ray was appointed in the Nomination & Remuneration Committee by the Board of Directors at its 
meeting held on 14.02.2020 and Ms. Suparna Chakrabortti resigned from the Committee in the Board Meeting 
held on 14.02.2020. 
** Mr. Shyam Sunder Maheshwari was appointed in the Nomination & Remuneration Committee by the Board 
of Directors at its meeting held on 30.08.2019 
 

The role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and terms of reference inter alia includes the following: 
 

a) To decide, review and recommend to the Board of Directors of the Company about the recruitment, selection, 
appointment and remuneration of a relative of Director or of Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and to 
decide the increase/modification in the terms of appointment and/or remuneration of any such person. 
 

b) To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management 
in accordance with the criteria laid down by the Committee, recommend to the Board their appointment and 
removal and to carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance. 
 

c)  To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and 
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
other employees. 
 

d) To formulate criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board. 
 

e) To devise a policy on Board diversity. 
 

f) To decide on whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the basis 
of the report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors. 
 

The company does not have any stock option scheme.  No remuneration, other than sitting fee for attending the 
meetings of Board and Committees are paid to the non- executive directors of the Company. The details of Non-
Executive Directors’ Remuneration for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 is furnished hereunder: 
 

Details of sitting fees/commission to Non-Executive Directors     
                                                    

                                                                                   (Amount in Rs.)  

Name of the Directors Sitting Fees 
Mr. Sushil Jhunjhunwala 95,000 
Mr. Ajit Jhunjhunwala  50,000 
Mrs. Nidhi Jhunjhunwala 15,000 
Mr. Gobind Ram Saraf 55,000 
Mr. Rohit Maheshwari 25,000 
Prof. Santanu Ray 95,000 
Mr. Shyam Sunder Maheswari 70,000 
Ms. Suparna Chakrabortti 1,45,000 
Total 5,50,000 

 
5. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations. The Terms of Reference of Stakeholders  
Relationship Committee (”SRC Committee”), inter-alia, includes considering and resolving the grievances of 
security holders of the Company and handling transfer of shares, consolidation / sub-division of share certificates, 
issue of duplicate share certificates & dematerialization / rematerialization requests. During the F.Y. 2019-20, one 
(1) meeting of Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held on 14th February, 2020 and all members were present 
at the meeting. The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of three Non-Executive Directors out 
of which one is an Independent Director.  

 
Chairman      : Mr. Sushil Jhunjhunwala 
Members      : Mr. Ajit Jhunjhunwala 
                   : Mr. Shyam Sunder Maheswari 
       



 
 
Compliance Officer    : Mrs. Nidhi Rathi 
 
During the year, the Company didn’t receive any complaint/grievance from the investors. No complaint was 
pending as on March 31, 2020. 

 
The Company had 108 Shareholders as on March 31, 2020. 
 

6. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 
 
The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee as required under section 135 
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee has been constituted with the following terms of reference: 
 
 Formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy indicating the activity or activities to be undertaken by 

the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 
 

 Recommend the amount to be spent on the CSR activities. 
 

 Monitor the Company’s CSR Policy periodically 
 

 Attend to such other matters and functions as may be prescribed from time to time 
 

The Company has adopted the CSR Policy. The Annual report on CSR activities for the year 2019-20 forms part 
of the Directors report. The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of the following: 
 
(a) Mr. Sushil Jhunjhunwala, Chairman 
(b) Mr. Ajit Jhunjhunwala, Member 
(c) Mr. Shyam Sunder Maheswari, Member 
 
During the period under review the committee met on 14th February 2020 which was attended by all the members.   
 

7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 
 
(i) Details of location, time and date of last three Annual General Meetings are given below: 

 
AGM for the financial year Location of holding AGM Date and time of AGM 
2018-2019 ‘Room No 105 ‘Chitrakoot’ 10th Floor 

230A, AJC Bose Road, Kolkata 700 020 
30th August, 2019 

1.30 PM 
2017 – 2018 ‘Room No 105 ‘Chitrakoot’ 10th Floor 

230A, AJC Bose Road, Kolkata 700 020 
29th September, 2018 

11.00 AM 
2016 – 2017 ‘Room No 105 ‘Chitrakoot’  10th Floor 

230A, AJC Bose Road, Kolkata 700 020 
29th September, 2017 

2.30 M 

 
(ii) Special Resolution passed during the last three years at the Annual General Meetings: 

No Special Resolution was passed during the last 3 years at the Annual General Meeting. 
 

An Extraordinary General Meeting was held on Wednesday, the 29th May, 2019 to pass the resolution regarding 
appointment of Ms. Ishita Jhunjhunwala as Whole-time Director of the Company during the year. 

 
(iii) Special Resolutions passed through Postal Ballot during FY 2019-20  

 
During the year ended 31st March, 2020, no special resolution has been passed through postal ballot. Further, 
the Board at its meeting held on 22.01.2020 approved the resolutions to be passed through postal ballot by the 
shareholders. Accordingly, the Postal Ballot voting started on February 26, 2020 and ended on March 
26, 2020. As the entire country was under lock down due to the Pandemic COVID-19 we were 
compelled to keep the further proceedings in the matter in abeyance.  



 
 

(iv) Whether any Special resolution(s) are proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot  
 
 Special Resolution(s) as may be necessary under the Act/Listing Regulations would be passed through 

Postal Ballot. 

 

8. DISCLOSURES 

(a)  Related Party Transactions: 
 

All transactions entered into with the related parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulation, 2015 during the year were in ordinary course of business 
and on arm’s length basis. During the year under review, no transaction of material nature has been entered into 
by the Company with its promoters, the directors or the management or relatives etc. that may have potential 
conflict with the interests of the Company. Suitable disclosure as required by Ind As- 24 - ‘Related Party 
Disclosures’ has been made note No. 29 of the Financial Statements. All related party transactions have been 
placed before the Audit Committee for review and approval. 
 
(b) Non-compliances / Penalties imposed on the Company by any Statutory Authority: 
 

No strictures / penalties have been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange(s) or the SEBI or any statutory 
authority on any matters related to capital markets during the year 2019-2020. 

 
(c)    Whistle Blower Policy 
 

As required under SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company has 
adopted the Whistle blower policy for prevention, detection, Investigation of Frauds & Protection of Whistle 
Blowers. 
 
(d)    Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading 

 

As required by the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to 
regulate trading in the equity shares of the Company by the Directors and designated employees. The Code of 
Conduct is applicable to all Directors, Whole-time Directors, CFO, Statutory Auditors, Secretarial Auditors and 
Internal Auditors who are expected to have access to Unpublished price sensitive information relating to the 
Company. 
 
(e)    Code of Conduct 

 

As required under, Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, the Company has laid down Code of Conduct for all the employees including Board Members and Senior 
Management Personnel of the Company. The Code of Conduct has been posted on the website of the Company 
i.e. www.genesisexp.com.  
 
The Company has received affirmation of compliance from all its Board Members and Senior Management 
Personnel of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020. A Declaration of compliance of this code 
has been signed by the Whole-time Director of the Company confirming the same is annexed to this Report. 
 
(f)  Disclosure of Accounting Treatment 
 
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), prescribed under section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, with effect from 1st April, 2017. 
 
(g)   Foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: 
 
There is no Foreign Exchange Transaction during the financial year hence this clause is not Applicable. 
 



 
 
(h) The details of compliance with Mandatory/Non Mandatory requirements: 
 
The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Corporate Governance Code as stated 
under sub-paras (2) to (10) of Para C of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations including Board Composition, 
Audit Committee, Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee, and Disclosures to be made to the Board and Audit 
Committee including related party transactions, accounting treatments, etc. 
 
Further, The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and 
clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

 
(i) Annual listing fee for the year 2020-2021 (as applicable) was paid to the Stock Exchanges where the shares 
of the Company are listed.  

(j) The Company did not raise any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement during 
the year under review. 

 
(k) A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice has been received stating that none of the directors on the 
Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of 
companies by SEBI/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

 
(l)   In terms of the amendments made to the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors confirm that during the 

year, it has accepted all the recommendations received from all its Committees. 
 

(m) During the year, details of fees paid/payable to the Statutory Auditors and all entities in the network firm/network 
entity of which the Statutory Auditor is a part, by the Company is given below: -  
 

                                                                          (  in lakh) 
Particulars By the Company 
Audit fees 2.10 
Other Services 0.15 
Total 2.25 

 
9. DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS - PART E OF SCHEDULE II 

 

The Company has complied with following non-mandatory requirements as prescribed in Part E of Schedule-II 
to Regulation 27(1) of the Listing Regulations is as under: 
 

i. The Board: 
 

The Company does not have a regular Chairperson. So no director’s office is maintained by the Company. 
 

ii. Shareholder Rights: 
 

The quarterly and half yearly financial performance are published in the newspapers and are also posted on the 
website of the Company and hence, it is not being sent to the shareholders. 

 

iii.  Audit qualifications: 
 

The Company’s financial statement for the year 2019-20 does not contain any audit qualification. The financial 
statements of the Company are with unmodified audit opinion. 

 

iv. Separate posts of Chairman and Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer: 
 

The Company has no regular Chairman. The Company does not have a Managing Director. 
 

v.  Reporting of Internal Auditor: 
 

The Internal Auditor presents his report to the Audit Committee on quarterly/half-yearly basis. 
 
 



 
 

10. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
 
The Un-Audited Quarterly Results are announced within 45 days from the end of the quarter and the Annual 
Audited Results are announced within 60 days from the end of the financial year as per SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The quarterly and half yearly unaudited and annual audited 
financial results were published in ‘The Financial Express’ in English and ‘Ek Din’ (regional language) in 
accordance with the requirements of Listing Regulations. 
 
The above mentioned results are being taken on record by the Board of Directors with due review by the Audit 
Committee and are submitted to Calcutta Stock Exchange where the company’s securities are listed. The Stock 
Exchanges are intimated about these results. 
 

11. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION 
 

AGM date, time and 
venue 

Saturday, the 12th September, 2020 at 1:00 P.M via. Video Conferencing through 
Zoom app: Link: 
 
https://zoom.us/j/94330866653?pwd=MVJCWmhQQjVzMG9ZeGIzMXlPSW1Sdz09 

 
ID: 943 3086 6653 & Password: 843374  
 

Financial Calendar F.Y. 2020-21 
Date of Book Closure Friday, 4th September, 2020 to Saturday, 12th September, 2020 (both days inclusive) 
Listing at Stock 
Exchanges 

The Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE) association Limited, Kolkata  

Stock Code for CSE 017135 
Demat ISIN No.  INE341D01014 (CDSL) 

 
 Market Price Data: High/Low during each month during the last financial year 
            
 As the CSE is non-functional exchange, no trading in securities of the Company were taken place since last many 
years. 
 

 Registrar & Share Transfer Agents:              Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. 
                   23, R. N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor 
                   Kolkata – 700 001 
                   Telephone nos. 033-22482248, 2243-5029  

                                 Facsimile no:  033-22484787 
                                    Email id:  mdpldc@yahoo.com 

 Investor’s Correspondence:  
 

The Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) attends to share transfer formalities once in a fortnight. All the 
enquiries relating to the share/ transfer and transmission, change of address, loss of Share certificate, etc. 
should be addressed to the RTA. 
 
 Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2020 
 

No. of equity Shares 
held 

Shareholder(s) Nos. Shareholder(s)
% 

Share(s) Nos. Shareholding(s) 
% 

1 to 500 89 82.40 8160 1.13 
501 to 2000 1 0.93 1666 0.23 
2001 to 3000 1 0.93 2500 0.35 
3001 to 4000 1 0.93 3333 0.46 
4001 to 5000 1 0.93 5000 0.70 
5001 to 10000 4 3.70 27332 3.80 
Above 10000 11 10.18 671518 93.33 
Total 108 100.00 7,19,509 100.00 

 



 
 Dematerialization of Shares                         :  6,47,883 dematerialized upto 31st March 2020. 

           
 Outstanding GDR/ADR/Warrants or             :  N.A. 
any convertible instruments, conversion  
dates and likely impact on equity 
 

 Plant Location               :  N.A           
    
 Correspondence Address                                          

Regarding Shares: Shareholders should address their Correspondence to the Company’s Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agents at the following address: Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd., 23, R. N. Mukherjee Road, 
Kolkata – 700 001, Telephone No.: 033-2248 2248, 2243 5029, Email- mdpldc@yahoo.com. 

Shareholders may also contact Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company for any                                      
assistance. The address of the Registered Office is as under: 
        
Genesis Exports Ltd                        
‘Chitrakoot’, 10th Floor 
230A, A.J.C. Bose Road 
Kolkata 700 020 
Telephone nos: 7604088814/5/6/7 
E-mail:  genesis.exports@genesisexp.com 
   

 CEO / CFO Certification 
 

In compliance with Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, a declaration by the Whole-time Director and 
Chief Financial Officer has been given which, inter-alia certifies to the Board the accuracy of financial statements 
and the adequacy of internal controls for the financial reporting purpose for the year ended 31st March, 2020 and 
the same is enclosed with this report. 
 

 Compliance Certificate from the Auditors 
 

The Company has obtained a Certificate from the Secretarial Auditors of the Company confirming compliance 
with conditions of Corporate Governance for the year ended on March 31, 2020, as stipulated under Regulation 
34 read with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is annexed hereto. 
 

                                                                              For and on behalf of the Board of Directors    
                                                                                       

                                                                     
 
                                                                               (Ajit Jhunjhunwala)           (Ishita Jhunjhunwala) 

Place: Kolkata                                                                Director                       Whole Time Director      
Date:  27th July, 2020                                                   DIN: 00111872                       DIN: 08325065                                                 

 
DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
I, Ishita Jhunjhunwala, Whole-time Director of Genesis Exports Limited, hereby declare that all the members of the 
Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct and have 
given confirmation in this regard for the year ended March 31, 2020. 
  
                                                                                                                              For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

                                                                                                                                          
Date:  27th July, 2020                                                                                            (Ishita Jhunjhunwala) 
Place: Kolkata                                                                                                                             Whole -Time Director 
                                                                                                                                              DIN – 08325065 



   
 
 

Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (C.E.O.) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (C.F.O.) CERTIFICATION 
  
 
To,  
The Members of 
GENESIS EXPORTS LIMITED 
 
We, Ishita Jhunjhunwala, Whole-time Director & Nirmal Kumar Bengani, Chief Financial Officer of Genesis 
Exports Ltd have reviewed financial statements and cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020 and 
to the best of our knowledge and our belief certify to the Board that: 
 
(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statements that might be misleading; 
 

(ii)  These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
existing Ind Accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 

(iii) No transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the 
Company’s Code of Conduct. 

 

Further, we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that 
we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial 
reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation 
of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify 
these deficiencies; 
 
(iv) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee: 

a) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
 
b) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and the same has been disclosed in the Notes to 
financial statements; and 

 
c) No instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial 
reporting. 

 

                                                                                                         For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

                                                                                                                
Date:  27th July, 2020                  (Nirmal Kumar Bengani)                (Ishita Jhunjhunwala)                  
Place: Kolkata                                                                   Chief Financial Officer                   Whole-time Director                                     
                                                                                                                                              DIN- 08325065                               
























































































































































































































